Public Document Pack

Date:
Our ref:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

09 June 2021
Cabinet/Agenda
Charles Hungwe
(01843) 577186
charles.hungwe@officer.thanet.gov.uk

CABINET
17 JUNE 2021
A meeting of the Cabinet will be held at 7.00 pm on Thursday, 17 June 2021 in the Council
Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent.
Membership:
Councillor Ashbee (Chair); Councillors: Pugh, J Bayford, R Bayford, Kup and D Saunders

AGENDA
Item
No

Subject

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 3 - 4)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the advice
contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda. If a Member
declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form

3.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 8)
To approve the summary of recommendations and decisions of the Cabinet meeting held
on 29 April 2021, copy attached.

4.

EVALUATION OF RETENTION OR DISPOSAL OPTIONS FOR 18 ALBERT STREET,
RAMSGATE, CT11 9HD (Pages 9 - 14)

5.

REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES (Pages 15 - 20)

6.

COASTAL LIFTS CURRENT POSITION
Report to follow.

7.

LEVELLING UP FUND - MARGATE DIGITAL
Report to follow.

Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ
Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000
Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906
DX 30555 (Margate)
www.thanet.gov.uk
Chief Executive: Madeline Homer

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your
Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the
interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which:
1.
2.

Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;
And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest.

An associated person is defined as:
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your
spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are
civil partners; or
● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or
● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or
● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)
An Authority Function is defined as: ● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease; or
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992

Page 3

Agenda Item 2
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must
declare the existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the
matter, or when the interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda
item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.



Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in
which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it
should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form.

Page 4

Agenda Item 3
CABINET
Minutes of the meeting held on 29 April 2021 at 5.30 pm in Via Online Viewing Only.

721.

Present:

Councillor Helen Whitehead (Chair); Councillors Albon, Duckworth,
Everitt and Yates

In Attendance:

Councillors Ara, Ashbee, R Bayford,
Rev. S Piper, Pugh, D Saunders and Wing

J Bayford,

Garner,

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies made at the meeting.

722.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

723.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
Councillor Yates proposed, Councillor Albon seconded and Members agreed the minutes
as a correct record of the meeting held on 18 March 2021.

724.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REFRESH 2021-24
Members discussed the newly refreshed approach to how it both monitors and reports on
corporate performance with new performance indicators. This approach aims to provide
the public with clear and easy to access information on how key services are performing
and supports residents’ feedback that they would like the council to be efficient,
transparent and responsive.
As part of this approach, recognition would be given to the feedback the council would be
receiving each year from local residents, as part of its annual residents’ survey.
Residents have been consistently indicating to the council that feeling safe, having clean
streets and thriving towns were the things that mattered most to them and they wanted
the council to be efficient, trusted, transparent and responsive. The proposed approach
would address those views.
Councillor Whitehead proposed, Councillor Yates seconded and Cabinet agreed to note
the proposed new approach.

725.

PROCUREMENT OF WORKS AT ROYAL CRESCENT, RAMSGATE
Cabinet considered the proposed works for a 3 phase programme of structural works and
passive fire works at 4-15 and 19-23 Royal Crescent, Ramsgate. These works would fulfil
the council’s landlord obligations to maintain properties by carrying out essential
structural works and passive fire works to both buildings.
These council buildings are listed and protected by Heritage, which adds complications to
any works to be undertaken. Cabinet gave authority for the council to enter into a new
contract for works to its housing stock, subject to the approval of the required budget by
full council.
Cabinet would continue to engage tenants and leaseholders as part of moving this
project forward.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3
Councillor Wing spoke under Council Procedure Rule 20.1.
Councillor Whitehead proposed, Councillor Everitt seconded Cabinet agreed the
following:
1. The letting of the contract for the structural works and passive fire safety works at
Royal Crescent, Ramsgate, as detailed in this report, subject to the approval of the
required budget by full council;
2. The slippage of £800k from the current 2020/21 HRA capital programme against
expenditure on this project during the financial year 2021/22;
3. Recommending to full council that the additional budget requirement of £1.978m be
allocated to the HRA capital programme, from the HRA Major Repairs Reserve for the
financial years 2022/23 and 2023/24;
4. The proposed options for the recharging of apportioned costs to leaseholders, as set
out in section 6 of the cabinet report.
726.

THE FUTURE OF EAST KENT HR (EKHR)
Cabinet considered the report that set out proposals to disband the East Kent HR Service
(EKHR) and take HR services in house with effect from 1 September 2021. The
proposals set out the rationale for the decision, the proposed processes and relevant
recommendations.

The HR function had been a shared service for Canterbury City Council (CCC), Dover
District Council (DDC) and Thanet District Council (TDC) since September 2010. In its
original form, it was a four way shared service, with the inclusion of Folkestone and
Hythe District Council (formerly Shepway District Council). Shepway District Council
unilaterally left the HR shared service a few years later. The original Collaboration
Agreement (20/9/10) was replaced by the current Collaboration Agreement dated
14/10/16 between DDC, CCC and TDC.
A significant benefit of the proposal would be the closer alignment of the individual HR
services with the corporate priorities of each Council. Whilst the Chief Executive was the
Head of Paid Service and has ultimate responsibility for staffing matters, the proposal
would ensure that members would have more involvement in issues such as setting HR
policies and procedures which directly affect each Council’s staff. Members would also
be able to have a better understanding of issues which affect staff.
The following Members spoke under Council Procedure Rule 20.1:
Councillor Ashbee;
Councillor Stuart Piper;
Councillor Garner.
Councillor Whitehead proposed, Councillor Albon seconded and Cabinet agreed:
1. That EKHR should be disbanded and that the HR service returns in house;
2. That authority is delegated to the Interim Head of Shared Services, in
consultation with the Chief Executive and Leader, to carry out all necessary
processes to give effect to the decision;
3. That authority is given to the Interim Head of Shared Services to sign off and
enter into any agreements necessary to give effect to the decision. This includes,

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
but is not limited to, novation of contracts between any of the three Councils and
any third parties;
4. To recommend to Council that the East Kent Shared Services Collaboration
Agreement dated 14 October 2 016 is amended t o reflect the changes set out in
recommendations 1 - 3.

Meeting concluded: 6.14 pm

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
EVALUATION OF RETENTION OR DISPOSAL OPTIONS FOR 18 ALBERT STREET,
RAMSGATE CT11 9HD

Cabinet

17th June 2021

Report Author

Bob Porter, Director of Housing and Planning

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Jill Bayford, Cabinet Member for Housing

Status

For Approval

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

Yes

Ward:

Central Harbour Ward

Executive Summary:
This report sets out the ownership and refurbishment options for 18 Albert Street Ramsgate
CT11 9HD, a residential dwelling currently owned by Thanet District Council. This report
deals with the costs to refurbish the property and the capital receipt if the property is sold.
The report recommends the disposal of the property, 18 Albert Street, Ramsgate and the
reinvestment of the proceeds of sale in the council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Capital Programme.

Recommendation(s):
Cabinet are asked to agree, that:
1. The Council owned property, 18 Albert Street is disposed of through auction.
2. The proceeds of sale are reinvested in the council’s HRA capital programme.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
Using the higher refurbishment costs of £183k as highlighted below and assuming that this
cost was financed through borrowing, the HRA would be in deficit over the 30 year term of
the business plan for this property.
The use of capital receipts could be an alternative funding source which would see the HRA
generate a surplus, but due to other considerations around the potential increased costs of
management and the listed nature of the building, it is felt that any available capital receipts
are invested in future new build schemes as these are likely to offer better value for money.
Therefore from a value for money perspective disposal seems appropriate in this instance.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4
Legal
The General Housing Consent Order 2013 gives consent for local authorities to dispose of
land, including vacant dwellings held for the purposes of Part II of the Housing Act 1985,
provided those dwellings are not subject to a tenancy and the disposal is at a market value.
Corporate
Thanet District’s Council’s Corporate Aims include an increase in housing options, including
additional social housing and improving standards and safety in homes across all tenures.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are:
(i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited
by the Act,
(ii) advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies
to Marriage & civil partnership.
Due to the limited relevance to the Public Sector Equality Duty, it is not possible to further
this aim of the duty; however, this proposal is non-discriminatory and does not contravene
equity legislation.

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

18 Albert Street was formerly a Shared Ownership property since the 1980’s, one of
Thanet District’s Council’s first. The property is a grade II listed building and it is
within a conservation area. Unfortunately, in 2020 the leaseholder passed away, and
Thanet District Council purchased the leaseholders’ shares. The property is in a poor
state of repair as the previous owner did not have the financial capacity to carry out
any works. Thanet District Council is now the sole owner of the property. The
property is vacant, due to the need for substantial renovations.

1.2

The property is a three bedroom, three storey townhouse situated on the corner of
Albert Street/Adelaide Gardens. It is an attached property forming the last in the row
of terraces in Albert Street and is back to back with the row of terraces in Adelaide
Gardens/Liverpool Lawn and does not have any parking or garden/amenity space.
Please see Annex 1 for a location plan.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4
1.3

The house is in need of substantial refurbishment, with essential work required to the
roof. In order to evaluate the impact and options for either retention or disposal three
independent roofing contractors were commissioned to survey the roof and make
recommendations in reference to the cost of replacing or refurbishing the roof.
Quotations were provided in the range of £19k to £32k for this work.

1.4

An independent valuation has been conducted to the property. This valuation was to
ascertain the property's current market value, the value if only the essential roofing
repairs were carried out and the open market value if the property was brought up to
standard through refurbishment and upgrading.

2.0

The Current Situation

2.1

All of the quotations submitted by the independent consultants identified the need to
replace the roof. The roof must be addressed first to prevent further damage to the
structure of the building. The ingress of water on the internal structure is now quite
apparent.

2.2

An independent valuation of the property has been carried out. The property in its
current condition is valued at £115,000.

2.3

Follow up discussions took place with the valuer to identify what the value at sale
would be if the property had the essential roofing repairs carried out. If the essential
roofing repairs, as identified above were carried out, the value at sale would increase
to £140,000.

2.4

The valuer was also asked to identify the value at sale if the property was completely
refurbished, the value of the property would increase to £260,000.

3.0

Alternative Options

3.1

The proposed option is to leave the property in its current condition and seek to sell
at auction. Its current estimated market value is £115,000. The report further
recommends the reinvestment of the proceeds of sale in the council’s HRA capital
programme.

3.2

The first alternative option is to retain the property and refurbish. The refurbishment
works include but are not limited to: site clearance, strip out, treatment of damp
internal timbers, new ceilings, plaster to all walls, new windows, new central heating
system, complete rewire, upgrading plumbing system, new kitchen, new sanitary
fixings and a complete redecoration throughout including floor coverings. The valuer
estimated a figure of £52,800 plus VAT (this includes a 10% contingency) which
should be allowed to bring the property up to standard. This cost would be in addition
to the roofing costs previously mentioned. A budget of approximately £78,000 plus
VAT would therefore need to be provided. However, this is considered to be a very
low figure based on costs of previously completed similar renovation projects.

3.3

We have refurbished several properties over the last few years with varying costs per
square metre. The table below provides examples of recently refurbished properties
and the cost per square metre to refurbish these properties:

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

Name of property

Cost per square metre

93 Westcliff Road Ramsgate

£914.51

40-46 Sweyn Road Margate

£1,859.50

24 Ethelbert Crescent Margate

£1,112.74

17-21 Warwick Road Margate

£1,669.62

The four examples above provide an average cost per square metre of £1,400. The
gross external area of 18 Albert Street is approximately 131 square metres.
Using the average refurbishment figure with the external area of 18 Albert Street,
generates a higher refurbishment cost of £183,400. Additionally, the property is within
a conservation area and is Grade II listed, which will potentially increase cost further.
The property is an expensive property to run and maintain as social housing stock.
The property has a very difficult layout with a narrow winding staircase and does not
provide a parking space or garden/amenity space. Families seeking this type of
accommodation would find an easier layout with amenity space desirable; for
instance, to dry clothes or for children to play. Even if the refurbishments were
completed the dwelling would be unsuitable for use as an affordable family home.
3.3

The second alternative option is to carry out the essential repairs only (the roof) to
increase the property value and then sell the house with vacant possession. The cost
of the essential repairs is between £19k to £32k, plus VAT. The value of the property
in its current state is estimated to be £115,000. If the essential repairs were carried
out the property’s value is estimated to increase to £140,000. The difference between
the cost of the essential works and the estimated increase in the property’s value is
negligible. A budget of up to £32k would need to be provided, from the Housing
Revenue Account Capital Programme.

Contact Officer: Ashley Jackson, Housing Strategy & Projects Manager
Reporting to: Bob Porter, Director of Housing and Planning
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Clive Bowen (Finance Manager)
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 12

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1
Annex 1
Cabinet Report: Evaluation of Retention or Disposal Options for 18 Albert Street, Ramsgate,
CT11 9HD
Location Plan:

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Representation on Executive Appointed Outside Bodies 2021/22
Cabinet

17 June 2021

Report Author

Committee Service Manager

Portfolio Holder

The Leader of Council

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:
This report informs Cabinet of the Leader’s choice of appointments to the Executive outside
bodies for 2021/22.

Recommendation(s):
That Cabinet agrees the list of nominations to the Executive-related outside bodies as shown
at Annex 1 of the report.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no financial implications arising directly arising from this report.
Legal
There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

Corporate
The Council appoints representatives to outside bodies in order to express the views of the
Council to those bodies on the work they undertake, and to feed back to the Council issues
emerging from those bodies that relate to Council activities.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: (Delete as appropriate)
●
●
●

To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

No implications arise directly but the Council needs to retain a strong focus and
understanding on issues of diversity amongst the local community and ensure service
delivery matches these.
It was important to be aware of the Council’s responsibility under the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration has been given to the equalities
impact that may be brought upon communities by the decisions made by Council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ●
●
●

Growth
Environment
Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

It was agreed at the meeting of Council on 24 February 2011 that any list of outside
bodies would be split into two lists: those outside bodies that relate to an Executive
function and hence should be appointed by the Cabinet and those that are appointed
by Council.

1.2

It is for Council to decide on those outside bodies it feels relate to an Executive
function and hence should have a Cabinet Member appointed to them, but for
Cabinet to agree the nominations to those outside bodies.

1.3

The Leader’s delegated powers were amended to allow them to propose their
nominations for the Executive outside bodies to the Cabinet.

2.0

The Current Situation

Page 16

Agenda Item 5
2.1

Council agreed the list of Executive outside bodies and the number of Councillors to
be appointed to them, as described at paragraph 1.2 of this report at its meeting on
13 May 2021. That list is attached at Annex 1 to the report.

2.2

Due to a change in the leadership of the council, there was a need for the new
Cabinet to review the list of council representatives on Executive appointed outside
bodies. The Leader will inform their list of nominations to the Executive outside
bodies at the meeting.

2.3

Cabinet is the decision making body only for making nominations to existing Bodies
agreed by Council. Any newly proposed Outside Bodies would need to be agreed at
Full Council.

Contact Officer: Charles Hungwe, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Reporting to: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Annex List
Annex 1: List Executive Appointed Outside Bodies for 2021/22
Background Papers
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Legal: Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
List of Executive Appointed Outside Bodies – for the municipal year 2021/22

Name of Outside Body
British Ports Association
British Resorts Association (AGM,
Annual Conference and Executive
Meetings)
Community Safety Partnership
Domestic Violence Forum

No. of
Reps
1
1

1
1+
1 sub

East Kent Opportunities Ltd

1

East Kent Spatial Development
Company

1

Kent Police and Crime Panel

1

Local Government Association Coastal
Special Interest Group

1

Local Government Association District
Councils’ Network

Representatives
2021/22

1

Local Government Association (General
Assembly)

1

Local Government Association Strategic
Aviation Specialist Interest Group

1

Margate Town Partnership

1

South East England Councils

1

Supporting People in Kent
Commissioning Body

1

Thanet Harbour Users’ Groups

1
+ 1 sub

Thanet Quality Bus Partnership

1

Page 19

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1
Tourism South East

1

Your Leisure Thanet Sub Group

2

Page 20

